
*** AGENDA *** 

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY HALL 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, ROOM 300 

801 PLUM STREET 

CINCINNATI, OHIO 45202 

VIRTUALLY VIA ZOOM 

 

February 3, 2023 

9:00 a.m. 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

MINUTES  Consider the minutes of December 16, 2022 (page 2) and January 20, 2023 (page 

15). 

 

DISCUSSION ITEM – LEGISLATIVE 

 

ITEM 1 A report and recommendation on a proposed zone change from Commercial 

Community – Auto-oriented (CC-A), Commercial Community – Pedestrian (CC-

P), and Office General (OG) to Planned Development (PD), including a Concept 

Plan and Development Program Statement, at the southwest quadrant of the 

intersection of Reading Road and E. Martin Luther King Jr. Drive in Avondale. 

(Hoffman) (page 25) 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Presentation of proposed amendments to the City Planning Commission Rules. (Martinez) (page 

197) 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

ADJOURN 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

December 16, 2022 

 

Regular Meeting  

 

A regular meeting of the Cincinnati City Planning Commission for Friday, December 16, 2022 

was held in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 801 Plum Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 and 

virtually on Zoom.  

 

The manner of remote participation complied with all requirements of the Open Meetings Act. The 

meeting could be watched in real time on CitiCable or by livestreaming the meeting at 

www.cincinnati-oh.gov/media. Members of the public were invited to participate in-person or by 

registering online to receive the Zoom link. Public comments and questions to be shared with the 

City Planning Commission could be submitted to the Department of City Planning and 

Engagement in advance of the meeting. 

 

Present:  Mr. Byron Stallworth, Chair  

Mr. Jacob Samad, Vice Chair 

Mr. John Eby, Commissioner 

Vice Mayor Ms. Jan-Michele Lemon Kearney, Commissioner  

Ms. Olivia Smitherman, Commissioner  

Assistant City Manager, Mr. William “Billy” Weber, Commissioner 

  

Excused: Ms. Anne Sesler, Commissioner  

  

Staff Present: Ms. Katherine Keough-Jurs, City Planning & Engagement, Director 

Mr. Charles Martinez, Law, Legal Counsel 

Mr. Alex Peppers, City Planning & Engagement, Deputy Director 

Ms. Emily Ahouse, City Planning & Engagement, Zoning Administrator 

Ms. Gabrielle Couch, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner 

Ms. Maria Dienger, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner 

Mr. Andrew Halt, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner  

Ms. Stacey Hoffman, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Ms. Caroline Kellam, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Mr. Jesse Urbancsik, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Ms. Ashlie Wilkson, City Planning & Engagement, Senior Administrative 

Specialist 

Ms. Emily Burns, City Planning & Engagement, Planning Intern  

 

 

Mr. Stallworth called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. and asked that everyone join in the 

Pledge of Allegiance, followed by a Moment of Silence in honor of those impacted by COVID-19. 

 

 

 



2 
 

Consent Agenda – Quasi-Judicial 

ITEM 1 

A report and recommendation on a proposed Development Plan and Final Plat located at 3762 and 

3764 Grovedale Place in Hyde Park, including relief from the City Subdivision Regulations. The 

Department of City Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning 

Commission: 

 

1) ADOPT the Department of City Planning and Engagement findings and 

analysis outlined in Section 300-09(a)(6) including General Purposes outlined 

in Section 100-03 of the Subdivision Regulations as detailed on pages 1-3 of 

the staff report;  

 

2) ADOPT the variance analysis and findings outlined in Section 500-03 as set 

forth on pages 3-5 of the staff report and APPROVE a 10-foot variance for the 

lot width from Section 800-03(a) for 3764 Grovedale Place to allow a lot width 

of 40 feet in an SF-6 zoning district; 

 

3) ADOPT the variance analysis and findings outlined in Section 500-03 as set 

forth on pages 3-5 of the staff report and APPROVE a 2-foot variance for the 

lot width from Section 800-03(a) for 3764 Grovedale Place to allow a lot width 

of 48 feet in an SF-6 zoning district; 

 

4) APPROVE the proposed Development Plan and Final Plat located at 3762, 

3764, and 3768 Grovedale Place in Hyde Park including variance requests from 

the City Subdivision Regulations, based on the fact that the proposed 

subdivision is substantially consistent with Section 300-09(a)(6) and Section 

300-09(c)(1). 

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Item 1 on the Quasi-Judicial Consent Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Mr. Weber 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Smitherman, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. 

Weber 

            Nays:  None 

            Excused:  Ms. Sesler 

 

Mr. Samad was recused from Item 2 and left the room. 

 

Discussion Agenda – Legislative 

ITEM 2 

Mr. Urbancsik presented a report and recommendation on a proposed street closure of Woodward 

Street and a portion of Yukon Street and the direction conversion of Yukon Street and Goetz Alley 

in Over-the-Rhine. The Department of City Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the 

City Planning Commission: 



3 
 

 

APPROVE the proposed street closure of Woodward Street and a portion of 

Yukon Street and the direction conversion of Yukon Street and Goetz Alley in 

Over-the-Rhine with the following condition: 

 

 1. That the applicant works with the applicable City Departments to address 

or resolve the feedback and conditions they provided in the Coordinated 

Report (Exhibit C) and incorporate any resulting modifications into the final 

plans for the infrastructure improvements.  

 

Speakers and Discussion: 

Ms. Anna Barchick-Suter, with Cincinnati Center City Development Corporation (3CDC), stated 

she believed the project would bring amenities to the area and help promote business. Mr. 

Stallworth asked who initiated 3CDC to develop the proposal. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated the 

proposal was developed as a response to community concerns the City Administration received to 

address safety, provide more amenities, and expand the park.  

 

Mr. Weber addressed the Commission and explained the subject area became a public safety 

concern due to an escalation of issues during the pandemic and the Main Street incident that 

occurred during the summer. Mr. Eby asked how the project’s design would address public safety 

concerns. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated the belief that concerns were correlated with people hanging 

out in the public right-of-way and activities that could escalate and explained the conversion to a 

park would provide more oversight that could help manage and monitor activity.  

 

Mr. Stallworth asked how many residents lived in the buildings near Ziegler Park. Ms. Barchick-

Suter stated there were approximately 75 residents in the area, confirmed 3CDC had contact 

information of all the residents that would be impacted by the proposal, and said the residents 

received regular updates of engagement opportunities they could participate in and construction 

updates.   

 

Ms. Kearney asked what type of community engagement had occurred between 3CDC and the 

Over-the-Rhine Community Council and business association. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated the 

community council and business association had received invitation to all community engagement 

sessions that 3CDC facilitated and confirmed updates were shared with the Pendleton 

Neighborhood Council. Ms. Kearney asked if there was any opposition to the proposal. Ms. 

Barchick-Suter stated there were concerns among members of the neighborhood council regarding 

how quickly the project came about but confirmed there was no opposition received.   

 

Ms. Kearney asked Ms. Barchick-Suter to speak about the artwork that would take place and the 

engagement process with the community regarding the artwork. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated they 

were working with Black Art Speaks to lead the public art aspect of the proposal’s design and said 

the community engagement was currently ongoing. Ms. Barchick-Suter also confirmed the vendor 



4 
 

would seek quotes from artists and present them back to the community based on their conceptual 

relief.  

 

Mr. Eby asked about parking. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated 3CDC was working with the Department 

of Transportation and Engineering on a traffic analysis and solutions on relocating parking spots 

for residents.  

 

Ms. Brandy Delfavero, the Development Director for 3CDC, expressed her excitement for the 

proposal and said it would be a great asset to the nearby stakeholders. Mr. Stallworth asked if there 

was an in-house designer. Ms. Delfavero confirmed there was not an in-house designer and said 

consultants were used.  

 

Ms. Debbie Mays, Pendleton resident, stated her concern regarding funding for the proposal. Mr. 

Weber addressed Ms. Mays’ concern and explained the history of the appropriation of funds and 

capital review process.  

 

Mr. Frank Russell, an architect, urban designer, and property owner at 207 Woodward Street, 

stated he was skeptical and would like to see a comprehensive report that addressed safety 

throughout the neighborhood but confirmed he supported the proposal. Mr. Russell suggested a 

written agreement between the City or Park Board and property owners to memorialize access. 

Mr. Stallworth asked Mr. Russell where he parked and how would the proposal impact him. Mr. 

Russell stated he parked in front of the building which would be lost with the proposal, but Mr. 

Russell confirmed losing parking was a tradeoff. Mr. Weber confirmed that the pedestrian right-

of-way would be managed by the Department of Transportation and Engineering and said the City 

would enter a management agreement between the City and 3CDC to help with the management 

of the subject space. Mr. Weber mentioned that the Fire Department would require emergency 

access and confirmed access would remain possible.  

 

Mr. Dan Dorf, Over-the-Rhine resident, stated his concerns regarding accessibility, noise, and 

increase in cost of living in the surrounding area and suggested subsidized parking for residents as 

a good-faith measure to improve quality of life. Ms. Delfavero stated there was no community 

feedback received regarding parking. Mr. Stallworth asked about subsidized parking for residents. 

Ms. Delfavero stated 3CDC would investigate the suggestion but confirmed 3CDC had not offered 

that solution in the past. Mr. Weber provided further details on the actions the City had taken 

regarding residential parking in the Over-the-Rhine area. 

 

Ms. Lindsay Swadner, representing the Over-the-Rhine Community Council, stated the 

community council was opposed to the proposal and said they had not received any notice 

regarding community engagements from 3CDC. Ms. Swadner also stated 3CDC was made aware 

of parking and safety concerns. Mr. Stallworth asked Ms. Swadner how far her business was 

located from Yukon Street. Ms. Swadner confirmed her business was located a block and a half 



5 
 

from the subject street. Ms. Delfavero stated 3CDC had attended Over-the-Rhine Community 

Council meeting to present the proposal.  

 

Ms. Kearney asked about the construction timeline and sense of urgency necessary to complete 

the project. Mr. Weber verified the City’s goal for an opening was May 2023 and emphasized the 

involvement of numerous City departments on the project in response to the violence on Main 

Street. Mr. Weber requested Interim Assistant City Manager Virginia Tallent and Cincinnati Police 

Captain Matthew Hammer to speak to address public safety and community engagement.  

 

Ms. Tallent provided a thorough explanation of the Main Street incident that initiated the 

proposal’s concept, details regarding the types of community engagement meetings coordinated 

by the City Manager’s Office, and information on public feedback received from residents and 

community members. Captain Hammer described the increase of challenges within the area during 

the 2022 calendar year. Captain Hammer also stated there were crime preventive elements to the 

proposal that would make crime easier to manage. Mr. Stallworth asked when the common 

occurrence of crime was and if he believed the proposal would help minimize crime. Captain 

Hammer confirmed that most crime in the area occurred at night and stated that in his professional 

opinion, he believed the proposal would be beneficial to public safety and improve quality of life. 

 

Ms. Kelly Adamson, Executive Director of the Over-the-Rhine Chamber of Commerce, and 

resident on Main Street, stated her support for the proposal. Ms. Adamson stated that the Over-

the-Rhine Chamber of Commerce sent out community engagement sessions correspondence to 

Main Street small businesses and residents to allow the community the opportunity to learn and 

understand the proposal and the proposal’s process. Ms. Adamson also provided national statistics 

of the reduction of crime with the creation of greenspace in vacant lots and maintained 

appropriately. She reiterated statements from Captain Hammer regarding improvement to quality 

of life, public safety, and stated the proposal was a step forward in reducing violence.  

 

Ms. Leslie Rasmussen, representing the Model Group, stated their support for the proposal. Mr. 

Stallworth asked Ms. Rasmussen if the Model Group had any properties and Mr. Weber asked Ms. 

Rasmussen to speak on their engagement with residents. Ms. Rasmussen provided details on the 

Model Group’s properties as well as notification and community engagement efforts with 

residents.  

 

Ms. Alexis Marsh, board trustee member of the Over-the-Rhine Community Council, stated her 

concerns with the lack of off-street parking for residents, street and sidewalk closures, and 

pedestrian safety due to construction. Ms. Marsh stated the improvements would make the subject 

area an attraction rather than a better neighborhood and requested an alternative parking option for 

residents. Ms. Marsh confirmed that the Community Council held regularly monthly meetings and 

stated there was no engagement regarding the proposal. Mr. Weber addressed Ms. Marsh’s request, 

explained how garage development was funded, and mentioned the City’s on-street residential 



6 
 

parking program. Mr. Eby asked how far the parking spots would be relocated. Mr. Weber stated 

he was not able to provide a distance but assured the Commission that the City would identify 

spots as close as possible to the subject location.  

 

Mr. Stallworth asked Ms. Delfavero and Ms. Barchick-Suter for information on 3CDC’s 

notification process. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated 3CDC met and shared information on the project 

with the Pendleton and Over-the-Rhine community councils in October 2022. She also stated a 

project-specific email was shared to allow the public to reach out with questions or be subscribed 

to 3CDC’s contact list. Ms. Barchick-Suter said updates regarding construction and community 

engagement opportunities were sent to the individuals on the contact list. Ms. Barchick-Suter 

confirmed the presidents’ emails of the Pendleton and Over-the-Rhine community councils were 

included in the contact list with requests to pass the updates to their full membership. Mr. 

Stallworth stated his concern over the opposition from the community councils. Ms. Delfavero 

referred to the City’s community engagement process that was hosted to discuss the street closure 

and stated support was received from the residents that lived adjacent to the subject site which 

aligned with the support received from the 25 attendees in the community engagement meetings 

facilitated by 3CDC. 

 

Ms. Julie Fay, Over-the-Rhine business owner, stated the small businesses located on the subject 

street would be negatively impacted and reiterated earlier statements made by Mr. Russell. Mr. 

Stallworth asked Ms. Fay about her support, and she confirmed she opposed to the proposal.  

 

Mr. Weber stated he would like to discuss the contact between the residents and business owners 

on Woodward Street and Yukon Street to better understand the mixed support between the 

constituencies. Mr. Stallworth called upon Ms. Marsh, Ms. Swadner, and Ms. Barchick-Suter to 

speak. Ms. Marsh asked a clarifying question regarding the number of attendees at 3CDC’s 

community engagement meeting and the number of residents on the street. Ms. Barchick-Suter 

confirmed there were 25 people that attended the community engagement meetings and said there 

were approximately 75 residents that lived on the street. Ms. Marsh asked Ms. Barchick-Suter if 

the residents parked on the street, if any residents voiced that they had children, or if the residents 

that attended the meetings relied on the residential parking permit program. Ms. Barchick-Suter 

stated not all residents shared feedback on how they parked within the neighborhood but the few 

residents that did reach out stated they use the residential passes. Ms. Swadner asked if parking 

questions were included in their survey. Ms. Barchick-Suter stated the survey contained open-

ended questions for people to provide feedback on concerns. Mr. Weber redirected the 

conversation and asked Ms. Marsh and Ms. Swadner for details of contact and conversations 

between the Community Council, residents, individuals that participated in the City-led 

community engagement meetings. Ms. Marsh confirmed an official meeting regarding the project 

had not taken place because the discussion had not been brought to the Community Council and 

said word had spread through residents reaching out with questions. Ms. Swadner also provided 

details of discussion between her employees that live on Main Street on how they were made aware 



7 
 

of the community engagement meetings. Mr. Weber thanked Ms. Swadner and Ms. Marsh for their 

time and addressed the Commission requesting to hear from 3CDC on the construction schedules. 

Ms. Delfavero provided details of 3CDC’s construction timeline with a completion date of May 

2023.  

 

Ms. Sheryl Long, City of Cincinnati City Manager, reiterated statements from Ms. Tallent 

regarding the City’s community engagement efforts and stated the recommendation to address 

public safety was to proceed with the proposed project, and emphasized the urgency to stay on 

target to complete the project. 

 

Ms. Kearney thanked Ms. Marsh for her comments and stressed the importance of community 

engagement for developers, community councils, and residents. She also addressed the frustration 

voiced regarding community engagement but stated the City Administration’s focus was public 

safety and referred to Captain Hammer’s professional opinion. Ms. Kearney stated her support for 

the proposal.  

 

Mr. Eby reiterated Ms. Kearney’s statements regarding the importance of community engagement 

and Mr. Stallworth agreed.  

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Item 2 on the Legislative Discussion Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Weber 

 Second: Mr. Eby 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Ms. Smitherman, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

            Excused:  Ms. Sesler 

            Recused:  Mr. Samad 

                

Mr. Samad returned to the meeting. 

 

ITEM 3 

Ms. Hoffman presented a report and recommendation on a proposed zone change for the area 

generally bounded by Odeon Street to the north, Blanca Alley and Elm Street to the east, West 

14th Street to the south, and Thuber Alley to the west, from Community Commercial – Auto-

oriented (CC-A) to Residential Multi-family (RM-0.7) in Over-the-Rhine. The Department of City 

Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

APPROVE the proposed zone change for the area generally bounded by Odeon 

Street to the north, Blanca Alley and Elm Street to the east, West 14th Street to 

the south, and Thuber Alley to the west, from Community Commercial – Auto-

oriented (CC-A) to Residential Multi-family (RM-0.7) in Over-the-Rhine. 

 

 

 



8 
 

Speakers and Discussion: 

Mr. Sean Suder, legal counsel for the applicant, provided historical background of the City’s 

zoning and the concerns of major changes of land use directly across from residential areas.  

 

Ms. Margy Waller, a member of the applicant team, stated the importance of the proposal as it 

would help preserve the historical presence of the neighborhood. Ms. Waller explained her 

community engagement process and said she and two other residents went door to door to petition 

for the proposal. She also requested a vacant lot on Magnolia Street be included in the residential 

zone if development plans did not move forward. Mr. Stallworth asked Ms. Waller how many 

people she spoke to for the petition. Ms. Waller stated she spoke to all residents in the proposed 

area.  

 

Ms. Holly Brians Ragusa, resident at 1414 Elm Street, thanked the Commission for their time, Ms. 

Hoffman for her work, and the neighbors’ engagement efforts. Ms. Brians Ragusa stated 

engagement between the neighbors was most important and said she supported the proposal. Ms. 

Brians Ragusa stated the distinction would be preventative and maintain the quality of life in the 

residential historic district.  

 

Ms. Allie Thomas, resident at 216 W. 14th Street, stated her and her family’s support for the 

proposal and reiterated Ms. Waller’s earlier statements of the importance of the proposal.  

 

Ms. Kathy Ryan, of Wood Lamping and representing The Pitch Cincy and other adjacent business 

property owners on Central Parkway, addressed the effects of the new buffering requirements on 

her client’s properties if this proposal were to be approved. Ms. Ryan agreed the current zoning 

was outdated and no longer appropriate for the area but explained the proposed zone change could 

negatively impact commercial properties.  

 

Ms. Kristen Wade read a statement of opposition from the owner of The Pitch Cincy, Mr. Ohm 

Patel, to the Commission. 

 

Ms. Kearney asked how the proposed zone change would affect Central Parkway properties. Ms. 

Keough-Jurs clarified the buffer requirement on properties on Central Parkway and requested Ms. 

Ahouse to speak in further detail. Ms. Ahouse provided a thorough explanation of the types of 

developments that would activate the buffer requirement if this zone change proposal were to be 

approved. Mr. Weber asked how the historic guidelines related within the buffer requirement. Ms. 

Ahouse stated buffer requirement relief could be sought through the Historic Conservation Board 

and clarified the historic design guidelines generally supersede the base zoning requirements.  

 

Mr. Jennings Kleeman, attorney for Mr. Michael Williams, owner of the Wooden Nickel Antiques 

and legal representative for 1400 Central Parkway LLC, stated his client was opposed to the 

proposal. Mr. Kleeman stated if his client developed or changed the use of the property, it would 

activate the buffer requirement which significantly reduced his usable and developable area. Mr. 

Stallworth asked Mr. Kleeman for his opinion on what the more appropriate zoning should be. Mr. 

Kleeman stated there were other zoning districts that would not activate the buffer requirement 

which was the major concern and would better serve the area.  

 



9 
 

Ms. Kearney asked about the process for buffer requirement relief. Ms. Ahouse reiterated the relief 

would be reviewed by the Historic Conservation Board, stated it would be approximately a 2-

month process from application to hearing and decision, and clarified the considerations the 

Historic Conservation Board would be weighing for the requested relief. Ms. Kearney asked for 

Mr. Kleeman’s opinion on the relief process. Mr. Kleeman stated he believed the process was an 

unnecessary hurdle that could be avoided by not approving the proposed zone change. Mr. Samad 

and Mr. Stallworth asked Ms. Ahouse to explain alternative zoning districts. Ms. Ahouse stated 

there would need to be more detailed analysis on any other zoning districts the Commission would 

like to consider but confirmed zoning districts were reviewed that met the applicant’s needs while 

also permitting the proposed hotel use. Mr. Weber asked where the buffer requirement would arise 

on Mr. William’s properties. Ms. Ahouse confirmed the buffer requirement would activate on new 

construction on a vacant lot or by a change in use to a more intense use. Mr. Weber asked a 

clarifying question if the buffer requirement would activate for adjacent properties. Ms. Ahouse 

confirmed the requirement would activate only if a property line or a zoning district line was 

shared.  

 

Mr. Michael Williams, owner of the Wooden Nickel Antiques, stated his property rights as a 

business owner would be affected by the proposed zone change and said the proposal would restrict 

the future development of commercial property along the street. Mr. Williams stated he did not 

have a personal issue with residential zone changes but confirmed he opposed the proposal as 

presented because it would affect the property he owned. Mr. Stallworth asked Mr. Williams for 

his opinion on a solution. Mr. Williams explained that he did not want to be restricted to a buffer 

requirement on future development on his property but also confirmed he did not currently have 

plans for development. Ms. Kearney asked if the Law Department had a solution to the buffer 

requirements that could negatively impact the local business. Mr. Martinez stated a 

notwithstanding ordinance could be an option to exclude the buffer requirement or assess other 

various zoning district options to determine which would be the most appropriate.  

 

Mr. Denny Dellinger, Over-the-Rhine resident, stated the proposal would limit future development 

and restrict economic growth in the neighborhood. Mr. Dellinger said he opposed the proposed 

zone change and asked the Commission to deny the proposal as submitted by the applicants. Ms. 

Kearney asked Mr. Dellinger to elaborate on how the proposed zone change would limit future 

development. Mr. Dellinger stated the restriction of uses would limit future development and said 

the buffer requirement was inappropriate for the neighborhood.  

  

Mr. Kevin Hassey, resident at 217 W. 15th Street, thanked the staff for their work on the project 

and the Over-the-Rhine Community Council for their support to recognize the area under 

consideration as residential. Mr. Hassey stated that due to the current zoning, residents were not 

afforded the protections as close-by residential zoned properties and therefore residents’ properties 

were thought of as structures in a commercially zoned district. Mr. Hassey asked the Commission 

for support and approval of the proposal as submitted by the applicants. 

 

Mr. Frank Russell, an architect, urban designer, and property owner in Over-the-Rhine, stated he 

supported the proposal as submitted by the applicants and the importance of preserving the 

building fabric that existed in the area under consideration.  

 



10 
 

Ms. Peggy Zink, resident at 216 W. 15th Street, stated the neighborhood had significantly changed 

over the years and she would like to see the area recognized as residential. Ms. Zink stated she was 

less concerned with the buffer zones and had more interest in having her voice heard as a resident.  

 

Mr. John Walter, Over-the-Rhine resident, stated Over-the-Rhine needed high-density 

development to help sustain small businesses and said that large vacant parcels could support high-

density development. Mr. Walter stated his concern was the buffer requirement that could 

compromise the potential for an economically impactful high-density project. Mr. Walter 

suggested decreasing the proposed zoning boundary to the east of the proposed hotel and possibly 

other properties to provide more new development opportunities without a buffer requirement. 

 

Mr. Hari Ramineni, business owner at 214 Magnolia Street, asked the Commission to oppose the 

proposal as submitted by the applicant. Mr. Ramineni stated his business would be directly 

impacted by the proposed zone change and said he was currently in negotiations for a coffee shop 

which would also be impacted. Ms. Kearney asked if Mr. Ramineni’s property was located near 

the boundary Mr. Walter suggested. Mr. Ramineni stated his property remained within the 

boundary that Mr. Walter suggested and said the proposed boundary would need to move further 

east to exclude his property from the zone change proposal. Mr. Weber asked if the buffer 

requirements would impact the commercial property at 214 Magnolia Street if the subject property 

remained in the commercial zoning district. Ms. Hoffman reiterated Ms. Ahouse’s statements that 

the buffer requirement would be activated only if there was an addition or a change in use.  

 

Mr. Brahma Ramineni, business owner on Central Parkway, asked the Commission to oppose the 

proposal as submitted by the applicant. Mr. Ramineni stated he would be open to exploring other 

zoning districts but said the proposed zone change would not be appropriate.  

 

Ms. Stephanie Gilbreath, resident at 218 W. 15th Street, stated her support for the zone change. 

Ms. Gilbreath stated her appreciation for the commercial investment made on Central Parkway but 

said the residents on her street also made investments into the neighborhood. Ms. Gilbreath also 

reiterated earlier statements of the protection against noise during early hours that residential 

zoning offers residents.  

 

Ms. Marylin Mag, Over-the-Rhine resident, stated she was not opposed to the development in the 

area but said she supported the proposed zone change.  

 

Ms. Roseann Hassey, resident on W. 15th Street, reiterated earlier statements regarding the 

recognition of the area as residential and her support for the proposed zone change. Ms. Hassey 

confirmed there was strong support in the neighborhood for the development of Central Parkway 

but stated the zoning district needed to reflect the evolution of the neighborhood. 

 

Mr. Suder readdressed the Commission and stated the importance of zoning code reform and the 

issues that arise from suburban standards imposed on an urban area. Mr. Suder stated the risk of 

the commercial zoning outweighed the risk of demolition and new development being subjected 

to the buffer requirement. Mr. Suder stated potential risks for residents must be considered over 

less likely scenarios that would activate the buffer requirement for businesses.  

 



11 
 

Mr. Samad stated it was made clear by all the speakers in attendance that the current zoning was 

not appropriate for the area but said he did not believe the proposed zoning district was appropriate 

either. Mr. Weber stated he would like to find compromise in understanding the buffer yard and 

reiterated the notwithstanding process might be an option to alleviating the requirement. Mr. 

Weber agreed with Mr. Suder’s statements regarding the likelihood of demolishing historical 

buildings within the commercial district and suggested the moving the zoning boundaries to 

provide some relief to the businesses along Central Parkway. Mr. Suder deferred his comments to 

Ms. Waller. Ms. Waller stated the property owners located behind the commercial properties along 

Central Parkway did sign the petition, but she could not confirm if the property owners would be 

interested in Mr. Weber’s suggested compromise. Ms. Waller stated the purpose of the proposal 

was to accurately reflect the neighborhood and provide residents the ability to voice concerns 

regarding business hours and noise. Ms. Waller stated the limitations for new development as 

stipulated in the proposed zoning district were not onerous due to processes in place to provide 

relief from requirements.   

 

Ms. Kearney stated the need to protect the residents where there were no longer commercial 

properties but also remove buffer yard requirements as it would negatively impact the businesses 

attempting to develop on Central Parkway. Ms. Kearney suggested holding the item to find a 

compromise. Mr. Eby agreed with holding the item to allow for further discussion.   

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to hold Item 3 on the Legislative Discussion Agenda to study additional zoning district 

options or amend the current zoning districts with consideration given to relieving property owners 

from buffer yard requirements.  

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Ms. Smitherman 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Smitherman, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. 

Weber 

            Nays:  None 

            Excused:  Ms. Sesler 

 

Other Business 

 

Ms. Keough-Jurs reminded the Commission of the 2023 Zoning Board of Appeals Calendar but 

stated for the sake of time that the Commission respond to their dates of availability via email.  

 

Director’s Report 

 

Ms. Keough-Jurs thanked the Commission for their time and dedication to the City. She reminded 

the Commission that this was the last meeting of 2022 and that the next regularly scheduled 

meeting would be held on January 20, 2023. 

 

Ms. Keough-Jurs mentioned that there would be a presentation on the 2022 Department of City 

Planning and Engagement’s annual report and 2023 work program at the January 20, 2023 

meeting. She wished everybody a happy and healthy holiday season and a happy new year. 

 



12 
 

Ms. Keough-Jurs also introduced the Department of City Planning and Engagement’s newest City 

Planner, Mr. Andrew Halt. Mr. Halt addressed the Commission about his background and 

experience. He stated his excitement to be a part of the department and looked forward to working 

with the Commission. Ms. Keough-Jurs passed on the final announcement to Mr. Weber.  

 

Mr. Weber presented Ms. Emily Ahouse, Zoning Administrator, with the City Manager’s 

Excellence in Service Award in the Department of City Planning and Engagement for 2022.   

 

The meeting adjourned at 12:59 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 
 

APPROVAL OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

December 16, 2022 

 

The minutes for the December 16, 2022 Regular Meeting are approved as distributed.  

 

 

 

________________________________         _________________________________ 

Katherine Keough-Jurs, FAICP, Director  Byron Stallworth, Chair 

Department of City Planning & Engagement  City Planning Commission 

 

 

Date: _________________________   Date: ___________________________ 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

January 20, 2023 

 

Regular Meeting  

 

A regular meeting of the Cincinnati City Planning Commission for Friday, January 20, 2023 was 

held in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 801 Plum Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 and virtually 

on Zoom.  

 

The manner of remote participation complied with all requirements of the Open Meetings Act. The 

meeting could be watched in real time on CitiCable or by livestreaming the meeting at 

www.cincinnati-oh.gov/media. Members of the public were invited to participate in-person or by 

registering online to receive the Zoom link. Public comments and questions to be shared with the 

City Planning Commission could be submitted to the Department of City Planning and 

Engagement in advance of the meeting. 

 

Present:  Mr. Byron Stallworth, Chair  

Mr. Jacob Samad, Vice Chair 

Mr. John Eby, Commissioner 

Vice Mayor Ms. Jan-Michele Lemon Kearney, Commissioner (via Zoom) 

Ms. Anne Sesler, Commissioner (via Zoom) 

Assistant City Manager, Mr. William “Billy” Weber, Commissioner 

 

Resigned:  Ms. Olivia Smitherman, Commissioner (resigned on January 19, 2023) 

  

Staff Present: Ms. Katherine Keough-Jurs, City Planning & Engagement, Director 

Mr. Charles Martinez, Law, Legal Counsel 

Mr. Alex Peppers, City Planning & Engagement, Deputy Director 

Ms. Emily Ahouse, City Planning & Engagement, Zoning Administrator 

Ms. Gabrielle Couch, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner 

Ms. Maria Dienger, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner 

Mr. Jeremiyah Hairston, City Planning & Engagement, Community Engagement 

Specialist 

Mr. Andrew Halt, City Planning & Engagement, City Planner  

Ms. Stacey Hoffman, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Ms. Caroline Kellam, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Mr. Doug Owen, City Planning & Engagement, Urban Conservator 

Mr. Jesse Urbancsik, City Planning & Engagement, Senior City Planner 

Ms. Ashlie Wilkson, City Planning & Engagement, Senior Administrative 

Specialist 

 

Mr. Stallworth called the meeting to order at 9:06 a.m. and asked that everyone join in the 

Pledge of Allegiance, followed by a Moment of Silence in honor of those impacted by COVID-19. 

 

 



2 
 

Ms. Keough-Jurs announced the resignation of Ms. Smitherman on January 19, 2023 from her role 

as a Commissioner of the City Planning Commission as she recently became an employee of Jostin 

Construction and resigned from the Commission due to potential conflicts of interest moving 

forward. Her seat on the Commission was set to expire on March 14, 2023 as she had filled the 

unexpired term of former Commission member Ms. Melissa Wideman that began on March 14, 

2018. The seat will remain vacant until the Mayor appoints a new member of the City Planning 

Commission with majority approval by City Council to begin a new five-year term. 

 

Election of Chair and Vice Chair 

 

Mr. Stallworth asked for nominations for City Planning Commission Chair and Vice-Chair for the 

calendar year 2023. 

 

Commission Action:  

Elect Mr. Byron Stallworth as Chair for 2023. 

Motion: Ms. Kearney 

Second: Ms. Sesler 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

 

Elect Mr. Jacob Samad as Vice-Chair for 2023. 

Motion: Mr. Stallworth 

Seconded: Ms. Sesler 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Abstained: Mr. Samad 

 

Minutes 

Commission Action: 

Approved the minutes from the December 2, 2022 meeting. 

 Motion:  Ms. Sesler 

 Second: Ms. Kearney 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

Consent Agenda – Administrative 

ITEM 1 

A report and recommendation on a proposed one-year extension of Planned Development #90 

(PD-90), Crosley Building, in Camp Washington. The Department of City Planning and 

Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

APPROVE a one-year extension to the approval of the Concept Plan and 

Development Program Statement for Planned Development #90 (PD-90) 

located at 1329-1333 Arlington Street in Camp Washington subject to the 

conditions stated in Ordinance #37-2021.  

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendation for Item 1 on the Administrative Consent Agenda. 



3 
 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Ms. Sesler 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

Consent Agenda – Quasi-Judicial 

ITEM 2 

A report and recommendation on a proposed Development Plan and Final Plat with relief from the 

Cincinnati Zoning Code located at 571 and 575 Delta Avenue in Columbia Tusculum. The 

Department of City Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning 

Commission: 

 

1) ADOPT the Department of City Planning and Engagement findings that the 

proposed division of land is generally consistent with the General Provision 

Purposes outlined in Section 100-03 of the Subdivision Regulations as detailed 

on pages 1-3 of the staff report;   

 

2) ADOPT the Department of City Planning and Engagement findings, 

analysis, and recommendation of the zoning relief of the five (5) dimensional 

variances as outlined in the Zoning Relief Staff Report (Exhibit F); and 

 

3) APPROVE the proposed Development Plan and Final Plat for 571 and 575 

Delta Avenue in Columbia Tusculum including the variance request from the 

Cincinnati Zoning Code based on the fact that the proposed subdivision is 

substantially consistent with Section 300-09(a)(6) and Section 300-09(c)(1) of 

the Subdivision Regulations.  

 

ITEM 3 

A report and recommendation on a proposed new parking booth and relocation of a pay kiosk on 

an existing surface parking lot at 629 Sycamore Street in the Central Business District and within 

Interim Development Control (IDC) Overlay District No. 88, “Surface Parking in the Downtown 

Development Zoning District.” The Department of City Planning and Engagement staff 

recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

1) ADOPT the Department of City Planning and Engagement findings as 

outlined on pages 1-4 of the staff report; and 

 

2) APPROVE the permit application for the new parking booth and relocation 

of the existing pay kiosk on an existing parking lot at 629 Sycamore Street in 

Central Business District and within the boundary of Interim Development 

Control Overlay District No. 88, “Surface Parking in the Downtown 

Development District.” 

 

 

 



4 
 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Items 2 & 3 on the Quasi-Judicial Consent 

Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Mr. Weber 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

Consent Agenda – Legislative 

ITEM 4 

A report and recommendation on a proposed sale of City-owned property and dedication of right-

of-way on E. Pete Rose Way in the Central Business District. The Department of City Planning 

and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

1) APPROVE the proposed sale of City-owned property at the southwest 

corner of E. Pete Rose Way and Butler Street; and   

 

2) APPROVE the proposed dedication of right-of-way along the southern side 

of E. Pete Rose Way between Pike Street and Butler Street. 

 

ITEM 5 

A report and recommendation on a proposed land sale and swap, a proposed vacation and sale, 

and the proposed dedication of right-of-way in the East End. The Department of City Planning and 

Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

1) APPROVE the proposed sale/swap of City-owned property at 248 Watson 

Street and 256 Wenner Street in exchange for privately-owned 260 Wenner 

Street; 

 

2) APPROVE the proposed vacation and sale of a City-owned unnamed paper 

alley to Riverside Lots, LLC; and 

 

3) APPROVE the proposed dedication of right-of-way along Babb Alley, 

between Wenner Street and Strader Street to be used for the East End’s 

Neighborhood Business District parking. 

 

ITEM 6 

A report and recommendation on a proposed public art installation in Rapid Run Park and Dunham 

Recreation Center in West Price Hill and Westwood. The Department of City Planning and 

Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

APPROVE the proposed public art installation in Rapid Run Park and Dunham 

Recreation Center in West Price Hill and Westwood with the following 

conditions: 

 



5 
 

1) That the artwork installation, size, location, and general design is 

substantially consistent with the project description in Exhibit B and be 

reviewed and approved by Cincinnati Board of Park Commissioners and 

Cincinnati Recreation Commission staff at the time of permit review;  

 

2) The petitioner shall coordinate with the City regarding the donation of 

the art including a contract with the City in a similar form as the City of 

Cincinnati Artwork Donation Agreement (Exhibit C); and 

 

3) All artists involved in the creation and installation of the artwork shall 

provide the City with a Waiver of Rights pursuant to the Visual Artists 

Rights Act (Exhibit D). 

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Items 4, 5, & 6 on the Legislative Consent 

Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Mr. Weber 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

Discussion Agenda – Legislative 

ITEM 7 

Mr. Urbancsik presented a report and recommendation on the proposed zone change from Single-

family Residential (SF-6) to Commercial Community-Mixed (CC-M) at 729 Overlook Avenue in 

West Price Hill.  The Department of City Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the 

City Planning Commission: 

 

APPROVE the proposed zone change from Single-family Residential (SF-6) 

to Commercial – Mixed (CC-M) at 729 Overlook Avenue in West Price Hill.  

 

Speakers and Discussion: 

Mr. Craig Abercrombie, with Abercrombie & Associates Inc. and civil engineer for the applicant 

team, stated he was available for any engineering questions.  

 

Mr. Jason Phillips, owner of Western Hills Window Company and member of the applicant team, 

stated he was excited about their business expansion project, believed it would be an improvement 

to the subject corner, and alleviate traffic and make the area safer. Mr. Stallworth asked how many 

individuals were employed and if there were plans for expansion. Mr. Phillips stated there were 

10 employees and confirmed future plans for expansion to maintain operations.   

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendation for Item 7 on the Legislative Discussion Agenda. 



6 
 

 Motion:  Ms. Kearney 

 Second: Mr. Samad 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

               

ITEM 8 

Ms. Dienger presented a report and recommendation on a proposed zone change from Commercial 

General – Auto-oriented (CG-A) to Planned Development (PD), including a Concept Plan and 

Development Program Statement, at 7030 Reading Road in Bond Hill. The Department of City 

Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

1) ACCEPT the Concept Plan and Development Program Statement as 

submitted (Exhibits E and F);  

 

2) ADOPT the Department of City Planning and Engagement Findings as 

detailed on page 8 of the staff report; and 

 

3) APPROVE the proposed change in zoning from Commercial General – 

Auto-oriented (CG-A) to Planned Development (PD), including a Concept Plan 

and Development Program Statement, at 7030 Reading Road in Bond Hill. 

 

Speakers and Discussion: 

Mr. Stephen Dronen, with KEAN Ventures and a member of the applicant team, stated his 

excitement for the project and was available for questions. Mr. Stallworth asked about Mr. 

Dronen’s experience with similar projects. Mr. Dronen provided a brief history of projects 

developed in Cincinnati as well as other cities and areas. Mr. Stallworth asked about their 

economic inclusion goals. Mr. Dronen confirmed they were meeting and exceeding the inclusion 

efforts as required by the City and said they would continue to use the same inclusion plan for the 

proposal. Ms. Kearney asked for more information regarding the inclusion goals. Mr. Dronen 

stated he did not have exact figures at the time but confirmed they had a 30% target goal for women 

and small business enterprise contracts. Mr. Dronen stated they would bring forward an economics 

package once they were further along in the design process and had actual costs identified. 

 

Ms. Kearney asked about Bond Hill Community Council’s conditional approval based on a 

community benefits agreement. Mr. Dronen stated their focus was on the design and uses that 

Bond Hill had requested of the applicant team.  Ms. Kearney asked if the project would include 

mixed-income price points. Mr. Dronen provided general rent prices and confirmed the target 

market was middle professional income range. Ms. Kearney stressed the importance of the 

applicant engaging with the community and the community’s concerns regarding affordability. 

Mr. Dronen stated he would commit to further exploring opportunities to target more affordability.  

 

Mr. Weber asked Mr. Dronen to discuss where there might be transit-oriented development 

opportunities. Mr. Dronen discussed the transit concept design in detail and addressed areas of 

possible transit opportunities on the site plan.  

 



7 
 

Mr. Stallworth asked how the project would be managed and if a general contractor had been 

selected. Mr. Dronen stated a general contractor would be selected after the concept plan had been 

approved.  

 

Mr. Eby asked Mr. Dronen about his confidence in attracting tenants to lease the commercial space 

that would be available. Mr. Dronen stated he believed tenant occupancy would depend on pricing 

and the market. Mr. Eby reiterated Ms. Kearney’s statements regarding the importance of 

community engagement.  

 

Mr. Stallworth asked about traffic connectivity to the interstate highways nearby. Mr. Dronen 

stated the project would be using the existing curb cuts and surrounding infrastructure and said the 

demand the proposal would create would be less than what the area was initially designed for. 

 

Mr. Bill Fisher, Vice President of Community Development for The Port of Greater Cincinnati 

Development Authority (The Port), stated his support for the proposal and said he believed the 

project would be a great addition to the area. Mr. Stallworth asked if The Port was part of the 

capital stack. Mr. Fisher confirmed The Port had not been asked to be a part of the capital stack. 

 

Ms. Marcia Boyd, Vice President of the Bond Hill Community Council, stated her support of the 

concept plan and zone change but said she would like for the developer to engage more and work 

with the neighborhood on a community benefits agreement. Ms. Boyd stated Mr. Dronen made a 

commitment to attend the next community council meeting to discuss a community benefits 

agreement. Ms. Sesler thanked Ms. Boyd for her work with the community council.  

 

Ms. Kearney stated she was encouraged that Mr. Dronen made the commitment to attend the Bond 

Hill Community Council meeting in February and restated the importance of community 

engagement. 

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Item 8 on the Legislative Discussion Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Ms. Sesler 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

ITEM 9 

Ms. Kellam presented a report and recommendation on a proposed Local Historic Landmark 

designation of 700 Chalfonte Place in Avondale and North Avondale. The Department of City 

Planning and Engagement staff recommended that the City Planning Commission: 

 

1) APPROVE the proposed Local Historic Landmark designation of La 

Ventura Apartments at 700 Chalfonte Place in Avondale and North Avondale, 

as described in the “La Ventura Apartments Historic Designation Report” as 

seen in Attachment B; 

 

2) APPROVE the map amendment designating the Local Historic Landmark 

as seen in Attachment A; and 



8 
 

 

3) APPROVE the “La Ventura Apartments Historic Conservation Guidelines” 

as seen in Attachment C. 

 

Speakers and Discussion: 

Ms. Beth Sullebarger, historic preservation consultant and member of the applicant team, stated 

the subject building met the criteria in the historic conservation guidelines, reiterated the proposal 

was consistent with Plan Cincinnati (2012), and said the Avondale Development Corporation 

provided a letter of support in addition to the Avondale Community Council.  

 

Ms. Kearney asked about the North Avondale Neighborhood Association’s concern regarding the 

number of units and parking and if there were any other points of opposition. Ms. Sullebarger 

confirmed the number of units would meet the current zoning allowance and stated parking would 

be available on- and off-site but said she would defer to the North Avondale Neighborhood 

Association representatives for further comments. Ms. Kearney asked if there were chances to 

include lower income units. Ms. Sullebarger deferred to the property owner to address Ms. 

Kearney’s question. Ms. Sesler asked if the property did not receive the tax credit what would 

happen to the vacant property and if not receiving the designation would hamper development. 

Ms. Sullebarger stated the rehabilitation of the building would have to meet the historic guidelines 

regardless of the nature of the housing within the building and said she would defer the remainder 

of the question to the property owner. 

 

Mr. Nadav Livne, applicant and property owner, addressed Ms. Kearney’s question regarding 

opportunities to include lower-income units and stated he was very connected to the community 

and that they would be open to including affordable units. Mr. Livne confirmed the affordable 

units were not included in the business plan but stated there were multiple projects within 

Avondale that were affordable housing focused. Mr. Livne addressed Ms. Sesler’s question 

regarding what would happen to the property if tax credits were not received and said there were 

3 programs (national, state, and local) for historic designation tax credit. Mr. Livne explained they 

expected a portion of the national program tax credit and hoped to receive approval from the state 

tax credit. Mr. Livne confirmed the project would still move forward if the state tax credit was not 

approved.  

 

Mr. Weber asked Mr. Livne for his experience as a developer and plans to manage the property. 

Mr. Livne stated he had similar buildings in the neighborhood that were self-owned and managed 

and confirmed there were no intentions to sell.  

 

Mr. Stallworth asked about the project’s renovations timeline. Mr. Livne stated he hoped to have 

tax credit approvals by late summer to begin renovations and to have the units occupied within 15 

to 18 months.   

 

Ms. Sarah Koucky, President of the North Avondale Neighborhood Association, clarified that they 

did not oppose the project and stated they were only recently made aware of the proposal before 

the Historic Conservation Board meeting. Ms. Koucky stated the subject street was located in the 

North Avondale neighborhood as well as Avondale, but confirmed they were willing to work with 

Avondale and the property owner and said they appreciated the developer working on the subject 

street. Ms. Koucky asked Mr. Livne if he owned other buildings located on the subject street and 



9 
 

what their statuses were. Mr. Livne stated he did not own other buildings on the street and clarified 

the locations of the other businesses and buildings. Ms. Koucky invited Mr. Livne to attend the 

upcoming North Avondale Neighborhood Association meeting to speak to the community and 

residents regarding the development plans. Mr. Livne accepted Ms. Koucky’s invitation to the 

meeting to share information but confirmed there were no plans at the time because the proposal 

needed approval prior to developing plans.  

 

Ms. Kearney stated she was encouraged regarding the owner’s goals to provide more affordable 

housing and her support for the proposal.  

 

Commission Action: 

Moved to approve the staff’s recommendations for Item 9 on the Legislative Discussion Agenda. 

 Motion:  Mr. Samad 

 Second: Ms. Sesler 

            Ayes: Mr. Eby, Ms. Kearney, Mr. Samad, Ms. Sesler, Mr. Stallworth, Mr. Weber 

            Nays:  None 

 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Peppers and Ms. Ahouse presented on the 2022 Department of City Planning and Engagement 

Annual Report and the 2023 Department of City Planning and Engagement Work Program.  

 

Mr. Stallworth thanked Mr. Peppers and Ms. Ahouse for their presentation and the Department of 

City Planning and Engagement staff for their work. Ms. Kearney reiterated Mr. Stallworth’s 

statements, commended the work completed for the same-day permits, and stated she was proud 

of the community engagement work. Mr. Weber commended Ms. Keough-Jurs for her leadership 

and congratulated the staff for the work performed. Ms. Sesler reiterated Mr. Weber’s statements 

and stated her appreciation for the community engagement work throughout the city and Mr. 

Samad agreed.  

 

Director’s Report 

 

Ms. Keough-Jurs recognized Mr. Peppers and Ms. Ahouse for their leadership roles in the 

department. She also thanked Mr. Owen, Urban Conservator, and Ms. Wilkson, Senior 

Administrative Specialist, for their work throughout the year. Ms. Keough-Jurs also acknowledged 

the Planning and Zoning Divisions for their excellent work while being understaffed and stated 

her excitement for the new staff joining the department. She also acknowledged Mr. Urbancsik’s 

role on the board as the Program Manager for the Cincinnati Chapter of the American Planning 

Association. Ms. Keough-Jurs thanked the Commissioners for their time throughout the year and 

thanked Ms. Smitherman for her time on the City Planning Commission.  Ms. Keough-Jurs 

introduced the Department of City Planning and Engagement’s new Community Engagement 

Specialist, Mr. Jeremiyah Hairston. Mr. Hairston discussed his background and excitement to join 

the Department and City of Cincinnati team. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 11:24 a.m. 

 



10 
 

APPROVAL OF THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

January 20, 2023 

 

The minutes for the January 20, 2023 Regular Meeting are approved as distributed.  

 

 

 

________________________________         _________________________________ 

Katherine Keough-Jurs, FAICP, Director  Byron Stallworth, Chair 

Department of City Planning & Engagement  City Planning Commission 

 

 

Date: _________________________   Date: ___________________________ 



























































































































































































































































































































































 

{00208733-11} 1 

CITY OF CINCINNATI 

CITY PLANNING COMMISSION RULES 

(Amended as of  [______], 2023) 

 

 

SECTION 1. GENERAL POWERS. 

 

A. Enacting Authority.  The City Planning Commission (the “Commission”) of the 

City of Cincinnati, Ohio (the “City”) is established pursuant to, and shall exercise 

all the powers granted by, Art. VII of the City of Cincinnati Charter (the “Charter”), 

the applicable laws of the State of Ohio, the Cincinnati Municipal Code, and the 

ordinances of the City.   

 

B. Governance.  The Commission is governed by the Charter, the Ohio Revised Code, 

the applicable laws of the State of Ohio, the Cincinnati Municipal Code, the 

ordinances of the City, and the rules hereinafter set forth and duly adopted by the 

Commission. 

 

C. Conflicts of Law. These rules supersede any previously adopted rules in their 

entirety.  Whenever a conflict exists between these rules and the applicable laws of 

the State of Ohio, the Cincinnati Municipal Code, or ordinances of the City, the 

applicable laws of the State of Ohio, the Cincinnati Municipal Code, or ordinances 

of the City shall prevail.  

 

SECTION 2. TERM; LEADERSHIP AND DUTIES; MEMBERSHIP. 

 

A. Term.  The term of the Commission is one full calendar year beginning January 1 

and ending December 31 (“Commission Term”). The term of each Commission 

member is in accordance with the Charter. 

 

B. Selection of Commission Leadership. The leadership of the Commission consists of 

a Chair and a Vice-Chair, which positions are elected by a majority vote of the 

members of the Commission at the first regularly scheduled meeting of each 

Commission Term.   

 

C. Duties of the Chair. The duties of the Chair include: 

1. To preside at all regularly scheduled and special meetings of the 

Commission; 

2. To decide all points of procedure, unless otherwise directed by a majority 

vote of the members of the Commission; 

3. To sign the meeting minutes of the Commission;  

4. To consult with the Secretary, as defined below, concerning meeting 

agendas; and 

5. Those duties otherwise set forth herein. 



 

{00208733-11} 2 

 

D. Duties of the Vice-Chair. The Vice-Chair shall assume all the duties of the Chair in 

the Chair’s absence or incapacity. 

 

E. Secretary.  The Director of the Department of City Planning and Engagement, or his 

or her designee, is the secretary of the Commission (the “Secretary”). The Secretary 

is the point of contact between the Commission and the public and the Commission 

and planning staff.  The Secretary has the specific duties set forth herein.   

  

F. Absence of Commission Leadership.  In the absence of the Chair and the Vice-

Chair at a meeting, a majority of the members of the Commission present at the 

meeting must elect a temporary Chair to assume the Chair’s role solely for the 

purposes of that meeting.    

 

G. Membership.  Art. VII, § 2 of the Charter governs the composition of Commission 

membership and Commission member terms.  

 

H. Public Officials. Commission members are public officials and are bound by certain 

provisions of the Ohio Revised Code, including, but not limited to, the ethics laws 

contained in Ohio Revised Code Sections 102.03, 102.04, 2921.42 and 2921.43. 

 

I. Committee Appointments.  The Chair may appoint standing or special committees 

of the Commission at their election.  Each standing or special committee must 

consist of at least four members and must have a chair and a vice chair. The Chair 

appoints the membership and leadership of such committees at their sole discretion.  

Standing or special committees shall not have any authority to take any action to 

bind the Commission.  All meetings of the standing or special committees of the 

Commission shall be open to the public except as provided by Ohio law. 

 

J. Review of Department of City Planning and Engagement Work Plans. The 

Secretary shall present to the Commission the Department of City Planning and 

Engagement’s annual work plan at the first meeting of each term. 

 

K. Adoption of Meeting Calendars.  The Commission shall adopt a meeting calendar 

for the subsequent term before the end of each term. 

 

SECTION 3. APPLICATIONS. 

 

A. Application Forms. Requests for consideration of a petition to, or approval of, the 

Commission must be made on forms approved by the Commission and furnished by 

the Secretary in the manner and procedure deemed appropriate by the Secretary and 

subject to all applicable rules and regulations.  

B. Applicant. Any reference herein to the term “applicant” includes an applicant’s 

attorney or an authorized agent.  



 

{00208733-11} 3 

C. Timeliness and Completeness. All applicants must timely file all applications and 

supporting documents with the Secretary, detailing all information requested on the 

form and any additional information requested in writing by the Chair or Secretary. 

Any deadline for filing applications and supporting documents shall be 4 p.m. 

Eastern Standard Time on the respective date. 

  

D. Withdrawal.  An applicant may request the Secretary to withdraw an application at 

any time before a motion is pending to determine the outcome of the application. If 

a motion is pending to determine the outcome of the application, then the motion 

may only be withdrawn by a motion from the moving Commission member upon a 

second by another Commission member and an affirmative vote by the Commission 

members present. 

 

E. Postponements. The Secretary is authorized to grant an applicant’s request to 

postpone consideration of an item so long as the request for postponement is in 

writing, and the Secretary receives the request to postpone at least one business day 

in advance of the scheduled meeting. The Secretary shall not consider more than 

two requests from an applicant to postpone an item. 

 

F. Continuances.  Following the expiration of the deadline to make a written request 

for postponement, an applicant must request the continuance of the consideration of 

an item by appearing at the scheduled meeting and making an oral request to the 

Commission. Upon hearing an oral request for a continuance, the Commission may 

grant the continuance if it determines the applicant has demonstrated good cause 

that the consideration of the item should be continued. 

 

SECTION 4. MEETINGS. 

 

A. Open to the Public. All meetings of the Commission shall be open to the public 

except as provided by applicable law. In accordance with Cincinnati Municipal 

Code Chapter 121, the Commission may hold and attend meetings and may conduct 

and attend hearings by means of teleconference, video conference, or any other 

similar technology. All votes of the Commission shall be taken in open session, 

recorded by the Secretary, and available for public inspection at the Department of 

City Planning and Engagement.   

 

B. Notice of Public Meeting. The Secretary shall provide notice of all regularly 

scheduled and special meetings in accordance with the Cincinnati Municipal Code. 

 

C. Regular Meetings.  The Commission shall conduct regularly scheduled meetings on 

the first and third Friday of each calendar month (unless a Friday is a recognized 

holiday by the City, in which case the meeting shall take place on the following 

Friday) at 9:00 a.m. in Cincinnati City Hall, City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 801 

Plum Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202, or other location or by means of 

teleconference, video conference, or any other similar technology, as determined by 

the Chair from time to time, in consultation with the Secretary, subject to advance 



 

{00208733-11} 4 

notice in accordance with the Cincinnati Municipal Code. If no official matters are 

scheduled for a regularly scheduled meeting, then the Commission is not required 

to conduct a meeting.      

 

D. Special Meetings.  The Chair, in consultation with the Secretary, may, at his or her 

discretion, convene a special meeting of the Commission. Notice of the time, place, 

and purpose of all special meetings shall be delivered by telephone or e-mail to the 

Commission members at least 24 hours in advance of the special meeting. If a 

special meeting is open to the public, the Secretary shall post notice of the time, 

place, and purpose of all special meetings for public viewing at the Department of 

City Planning and Engagement, the office of the Clerk of Council, on the City’s 

website, and by such other methods as are reasonably calculated to provide notice.     

 

E. Agenda.  In consultation with the Chair, the Secretary shall prepare an agenda 

showing items for consideration at each regularly scheduled meeting (the 

“Agenda”). Items for consideration shall be presented to the Secretary no less than 

ten (10) calendar days before the regularly scheduled meeting at which they would 

be considered. The Commission may only consider items not included on the 

Agenda following a motion, second, and a majority vote of members present to 

consider such items by leave. In their sole discretion, the Secretary may petition the 

Commission to add an item to an Agenda by leave. 

1. Agenda Composition. The Agenda shall contain consent items and 

discussion items. The Secretary shall further identify each item as a 

legislative, quasi-judicial, or administrative item. The Secretary shall 

appropriately identify other special items, i.e., special presentations to the 

Commission.  

2. Agenda Publication. The Secretary shall mail or otherwise distribute the 

Agenda and all materials pertinent to each item thereon to the 

Commission at least five business days before the regularly scheduled 

meeting.  

 

F. Staff Report.  The Secretary shall prepare a staff report of all new business items, 

which shall be delivered or otherwise made available to the members of the 

Commission with the Agenda.   

 

G. Quorum.  A quorum for any meeting or any undertaking of official business of the 

Commission shall consist of no less than four Commission members.   

1. Establishing Quorum. The Secretary shall make a reasonable effort to 

notify an applicant and/or any other known interested parties of a failure 

to obtain a quorum before the meeting.   

2. Absence of Quorum. Failure to obtain a quorum, or the loss of an 

established quorum, shall postpone the meeting until the next regularly 

scheduled Commission meeting, unless another date is selected by the 

Chair, in consultation with the Secretary.   



 

{00208733-11} 5 

H. Attendance.  Any Commission member unable to attend a meeting shall notify the 

Secretary by telephone or e-mail at least one business day before the meeting. Three 

or more consecutive unexcused absences during any Commission Term will result 

in the Secretary issuing a letter to the Commission member seeking their 

resignation from the Commission. The resigning Commission member shall submit 

a resignation letter to the Mayor. 

 

I. Voting. 

1. Voting Rights.  All members of the Commission shall be voting members.  

Any member of the Commission may make a motion or second a motion.   

2. Official Commission Action.  The Commission shall adopt all official acts 

by a majority vote of the Commission members present at a meeting 

unless applicable law or these rules require more votes. 

3. Motions. All official acts of the Commission shall first require a motion 

by a member of the Commission seconded by another member of the 

Commission. All motions shall be stated clearly and shall list any 

proposed conditions. If a motion is not seconded and is not eligible for a 

vote of the Commission, the motion shall expire, and the Chair shall 

entertain further discussion by the Commission until another motion is 

made and seconded. 

4. Roll Call Vote.  All votes of the Commission shall be taken by a roll call 

vote.  However, the Chair may permit a straw poll vote of the Commission 

at their discretion.  

5. Majority Vote.  As used in these rules, the phrase “majority vote of the 

members of the Commission” shall mean an affirmative vote by a simple 

majority of the Commission members present at a meeting.   

6. Abstentions. A Commission member may abstain from voting on an item, 

but an abstention shall not reduce the votes required to take official 

Commission action.   

7. Tie Vote. If the vote on a motion produces a tie, the motion shall have 

failed as if the Commission had taken no action on the item. Accordingly, 

further action by the Commission shall be required to dispose of the item.    

8. Record of Vote.  The Secretary shall record each Commission member’s 

vote on every question. Alternatively, the Secretary shall indicate if the 

member is absent, recused, abstains, or otherwise fails to vote.  

9. Conflicts of Interest and Ethics. No Commission member shall vote, or 

take any official action, in violation of Ohio ethics law provisions, 

including, but not limited to Ohio Revised Code Sections 102.03, 102.04, 

2921.42, and 2921.43. 

10. Duty to Disclose Conflicts of Interest and Ethics Concerns. Any 

Commission member who encounters a possible conflict of interest or 

ethics concern shall disclose that issue to the Secretary and the City 

Solicitor as soon as practical before a scheduled meeting.  



 

{00208733-11} 6 

11. Determination of Conflicts of Interest and Ethics Concerns. Commission 

members are encouraged to consult the City Solicitor for legal guidance 

concerning conflicts of interest and ethics concerns.  

12. Duty to Recuse. In the event of a conflict of interest or ethics concern, the 

affected member shall remove themselves from the meeting room during 

that portion of the meeting involving the item from which that member is 

conflicted. A member who recuses themselves from consideration of an 

item due to a conflict of interest or ethics concern shall be treated as 

absent for the item, which absence shall reduce the number of 

Commission members used to calculate quorum and the number of votes 

required to take official Commission action. 

 

SECTION 5. MEETING PROCEDURES. 

 

A. General Rules. 

1. Meeting Procedure.  The Chair shall call items in the order set forth on the 

Agenda unless the Chair, in their sole discretion, determines to dispose of 

agenda items more efficiently. 

2. Appearances.  Any person may appear in person at the meeting or may be 

represented by an attorney or by a duly authorized agent. All persons 

wishing to appear before the Commission shall sign in on a form or a 

speaker card furnished by the Secretary and located at the entrance to the 

meeting room or by other means deemed appropriate by the Secretary.  

The Commission may exclude the testimony of anyone who has failed to 

sign in at the meeting.   

3. Written Submissions. The Commission may consider timely received 

written submissions, communications, memoranda, or other written 

arguments from an applicant or any person. 

a. Submission Deadline. All persons shall submit written narratives, 

communications, memoranda, arguments, or other materials to the 

Secretary no later than two business days before the meeting date to 

ensure that the Commission members are fully apprised of the issues, 

positions, arguments, and contentions concerning an application. If the 

submission deadline falls on a holiday, then the deadline is one business 

day before the holiday. The Secretary shall not accept late submissions. 

The Commission may consider written materials after the filing deadline 

at the hearing at the sole discretion of the Chair.  

4. Applicant’s Failure to Appear. If an applicant fails to appear before the 

Commission on a quasi-judicial item as scheduled and has not requested 

to postpone or to continue the hearing as provided in Section 3 above, the 

Commission, in its discretion, may take one of the following actions: 



 

{00208733-11} 7 

a. Postpone. Postpone the hearing until the next regularly scheduled 

Commission meeting; or 

b. Dismiss. Dismiss the application based on the applicant’s failure to 

prosecute; or 

c. Rule. Rule on application's merits provided that each Commission 

member participating in such a vote acknowledges on the record that 

they have reviewed all materials in the record including any written 

arguments, evidence or testimony. 

5. Decorum.  The Chair shall maintain decorum at all times during meetings.  

Before testifying at a Commission meeting, all persons appearing before 

the Commission shall clearly state their first and last name and their 

personal address or business address for the record. All speakers shall 

speak clearly into the microphone provided on the speaker’s table or 

podium and shall refrain from speaking over other parties. No one shall be 

permitted to speak from the audience. The Chair shall have the right to 

expel from a meeting any person exhibiting a lack of decorum or causing 

disruptive or combative behavior. 

6. Criminal Offenses Against Public Administration. Commission members 

are public officials whose duties and actions are protected from threats of 

violence and intimidation, among others. Commission members shall 

report immediately to the City Solicitor any instances or attempts of 

bribery, intimidation, retaliation, or obstruction of official business by an 

applicant or any other party. 

B. Consent Items. The Chair shall conduct the disposition of items found on the 

consent agenda in the following manner:  

1. Inquiry. The Chair shall ask the Secretary whether anyone has petitioned to 

move items from the consent agenda to the discussion agenda and whether 

any Commissioners wish to move any items from the consent agenda. The 

Chair shall then entertain a motion to remove items from the consent 

agenda, if any, and place those items under the applicable quasi-judicial or 

legislative discussion heading.  

2. Action. The Chair shall next entertain a motion to approve the items 

remaining on the consent agenda.   

C. Rules Applicable to Legislative Discussion Items. 

1. Ex-Parte Communication. Commission members may discuss legislative 

items with members of the public outside of regularly scheduled meetings of 

the Commission but are not required to do so if, at the member’s discretion, 

such discussions or contact would impair the member’s professional 

obligations to the Commission and the public. 

2. Legislative Discussion Item Hearing Procedure. The Chair shall conduct the 

disposition of legislative discussion items in the following manner: 



 

{00208733-11} 8 

a. Call Item. The Chair shall call legislative items in the order provided 

by the Agenda unless the Chair, in their sole discretion, determines to 

dispose of agenda items more efficiently.  

 

b. Staff Presentation. The Chair shall call the Department of City 

Planning and Engagement staff to present its staff report to the 

Commission. 

 

c. Questions of Staff. The Chair shall permit Commission members to 

ask questions of staff.  

  

d. Applicant’s Presentation. The Chair shall provide the applicant an 

opportunity to make a statement. Presentations for legislative items 

shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person. 

 

e. Questions of the Applicant. The Chair shall permit Commission 

members to ask questions of the applicant. 

 

f. Public Comment. The Chair shall call any members of the public who 

have completed a request to speak on an item. Persons providing 

public comment for legislative items before the Commission shall not 

be sworn. Comments on legislative items shall be limited to three (3) 

minutes; provided, however, the Chair may, in their sole discretion, 

waive such time limitations in the interest of advancing relevant public 

discourse. Any unused portion of that three-minute allotment is not 

transferable to another person. The Chair shall permit Commission 

members to ask questions of the members of the public following their 

comments.   

 

g. Affiliated Groups. If a group of affiliated persons speaks on an item, 

the Chair may also request that one spokesperson from the group 

address the Commission.  

 

h. Commission Discussion. The Chair shall entertain discussion among 

the Commission members, including any requests by a Commission 

member to ask questions of any person who has spoken or requested to 

speak on an item.  The Chair may end the discussion by calling the 

question, provided, however, a majority of the members of the 

Commission may vote to overrule the Chair. 

 

i. Motion. The Chair shall entertain a motion to dispose of the item.  If a 

motion is not seconded and is not eligible for a vote of the 

Commission, the motion shall expire, and the Chair shall entertain 

further discussion of the Commission until another motion is made and 

seconded. 

 



 

{00208733-11} 9 

j. Vote. If the motion is seconded, the Chair shall request a vote.  If the 

motion is not seconded or otherwise fails, the Chair shall entertain 

further discussion of the Commission until another motion is seconded 

and approved. 

 

D. Rules Applicable to Quasi-Judicial Discussion Items.  

1. Ex Parte Communication. Outside of a scheduled quasi-judicial proceeding, 

Commission members shall not engage in conversation with an applicant, or 

members of the public, about applications and similar subjects related to 

matters that will be the subject of deliberation and judicial discretion. 

Applicants and members of the public may contact the Department of City 

Planning and Engagement to request access to an application or for 

clarification of these rules. 

2. Directly Affected Persons. For the purposes of these rules, “directly affected 

person” means a person who can demonstrate some unique harm distinct from 

the harm suffered by the community at large. An entity may qualify as a 

directly affected person, provided that one member of the entity qualifies as a 

directly affected person. 

3. Burden of Proof. With respect to quasi-judicial items, an applicant bears the 

ultimate burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence.  

4. Sworn Testimony. A city solicitor shall swear all persons providing testimony 

before the Commission for quasi-judicial items at the beginning of the 

meeting or before their testimony.  

a. Attorneys. Attorneys may not be sworn unless they are serving as a 

witness or providing testimony rather than as an advocate and 

providing argument.   

b. Department of City Planning and Engagement Staff. Department of 

City Planning and Engagement staff members may not be sworn 

unless they serve as witnesses in the proceeding.  

5. Presentation Time Limits. Parties participating in a quasi-judicial hearing shall 

limit the presentation of evidence, witnesses, cross-examination, and rebuttal 

to a reasonable duration. The Chair may, at their sole discretion, extend 

presentation time pursuant to this Section as necessary to ensure that the 

parties are fully permitted to present any relevant position, argument, or 

contention; to refute the positions, arguments, and contentions of opposing 

parties; to conduct cross-examination; and, to ensure that all non-duplicative 

evidence and testimony is entered into the record and that the requirements of 

due process are otherwise satisfied. 

6. Quasi-Judicial Discussion Item Hearing Procedure. The Chair shall conduct 

the disposition of quasi-judicial discussion items in the following manner: 

a. Call Item. The Chair shall call quasi-judicial items in the order 

provided by the Agenda unless the Chair, in their sole discretion, 

determines to dispose of agenda items more efficiently.   



 

{00208733-11} 10 

b. Staff Presentation. The Chair shall call a staff member from the 

Department of City Planning and Engagement to present their staff 

report to the Commission.  The staff member’s presentation shall be 

limited to evidence submitted by the parties and found in the public 

record. 

c. Presentation by the Applicant. The Chair shall call the applicant to 

present its position, arguments, and contentions, offer and examine 

witnesses, and present evidence supporting its position. In their 

discretion, the Chair may limit or restrict the applicant’s presentation 

to the matters relevant to the application. 

d. Cross Examination of the Applicant. If an attorney represents a 

directly affected person, the Chair shall permit the attorney to cross-

examine the witnesses proffered by the applicant. 

e. Presentation by Directly Affected Person. The Chair shall call a 

directly affected person to present their position, arguments, and 

contentions, offer and examine witnesses, and present evidence 

supporting their position.  

i. Multiple Directly Affected Persons. If there are multiple directly 

affected persons, the Chair shall permit each directly affected person 

to present their positions, arguments, and contentions, offer and 

examine witnesses, and present evidence relevant to the application. 

However, at their discretion, the Chair may limit duplicative and 

redundant arguments.  

f. Cross Examination of Directly Affected Persons. If an applicant is 

represented by an attorney, the Chair shall permit the attorney to cross-

examine the position, arguments, and contentions of witnesses 

proffered by directly affected persons. 

 

g. Rebuttal. The Chair shall provide the applicant the right to rebut or 

refute any position, argument, or contention in opposition to its 

application. 

h. Commission Member Questions. The Chair shall entertain any 

requests by a Commission member to ask questions of any person who 

has testified or offered to testify on the item. The Chair shall have the 

discretion to end questioning by a Commission member by calling the 

question, provided, however, a majority of the members of the 

Commission may vote to overrule the Chair. 

i. Deliberation. The Chair shall entertain discussion and deliberation. 

Upon a motion duly made, seconded, and a vote approved by a 

majority of Commission members, the Commission may deliberate off 

the record and in private.   

j. Vote. Following deliberation, the Chair shall entertain a motion on the 

record to determine the item, to continue the hearing, or to take any 

other action permitted by applicable law. 



 

{00208733-11} 11 

E. Parliamentary Rules.  The Commission shall follow the rules and procedures set 

forth herein in the conduct of its meetings. The Chair may apply Roberts’ Rules of 

Order where these rules and procedures are silent.  

 

SECTION 6. PLANNING STAFF CONFERENCES.  

 

A. Proposed Zone Change, Text Amendment, and Final Development Plan Staff 

Conferences. The Secretary shall convene a public staff conference for petitions 

to change the zoning map or to consider final development plans before 

consideration of such items before the Commission. In their discretion, the 

Secretary may convene a public staff conference related to an amendment to the 

text of the City of Cincinnati Zoning Code before considering such text 

amendment by the Commission. The Secretary shall determine the time and place 

of all public staff conferences. 

 

B. Notice of Public Staff Conferences.  The Secretary shall provide notice of a public 

staff conference by regular mail and postmarked at least 14 calendar days before a 

conference on the following: 

1. To owners of record of real property within the area proposed for zone 

change and to all owners of real property located within a 400-foot radius 

of the subject property. The Secretary shall also notify the community 

council(s) representing the citizens in the area of concern and other parties 

as the Secretary may deem advisable to notify. The Secretary may require 

an applicant to place signage concerning the proposed change(s) in a form 

approved by the Commission and furnished by the Secretary at the subject 

property or in a manner reasonably calculated to afford notice to the 

citizens of the area of concern.  

C. Notice of Public Staff Conference for Text Amendments.  The Secretary shall 

provide notice of a public staff conference for a text amendment by regular mail 

and postmarked at least 14 calendar days before a conference on the following: 

1. The community council(s) representing the citizens in the area of concern; 

and, 

2. To other parties as the Secretary may deem advisable to notify. 

D. Conference Procedure.  A Department of City Planning and Engagement staff 

member shall be present at a public staff conference.  The procedure for a public 

staff conference shall be as follows: 

1. A staff member shall act as chairperson and shall direct a presentation of 

the petition and the relevant facts.  

2. The chairperson shall call upon the petitioner and opponents, if any, for 

their presentations. 

3. The staff may ask questions of the petitioner, proponents, and opponents 

and may allow reasonable rebuttals by the proponents and opponents.  

4. The staff shall record the statements made at the conference. 



 

{00208733-11} 12 

5. The staff may request written statements from the petitioner, proponents, 

and opponents addressed to the Commission.  

E. Staff Reports.  Following a public staff conference, the staff shall present the 

petition, staff recommendations, and written statements to the Commission. After 

the staff has held a public staff conference and made a recommendation, the 

Secretary shall place the item on the Agenda for a regularly scheduled Commission 

meeting, unless the Commission decides to consider such item at a special meeting.  

In addition to public notice of a Commission meeting, notices of the date, time, and 

place of the presentation shall be sent to all persons who indicated at the public staff 

conference that they wished to be notified of the meeting before the Commission.  

Copies of the staff report and recommendations will be made available to the 

applicant or his representative, community council representatives, and interested 

citizens, limited in number by economic prudence. The interested parties shall 

indicate at the public staff conference who shall receive the report and 

recommendation.   

 

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE; AMENDMENTS OR SUSPENSION OF 

RULES. 

 

A. Effective Date.  These rules shall be made effective upon approval by a majority 

vote of all the members of the Commission.   

 

B. Amendments. The Commission may amend or revoke these rules by a majority vote 

of Commission members, provided that written notice of the proposed amendment 

or revocation is provided to each Commission member at least three business days 

before such meeting. 

 

C. Suspension. The Commission may suspend these rules at any meeting by a majority 

vote of the members present.  

 

Rules of Procedure 

City of Cincinnati City Planning Commission: 

Table of Amendments 

Action Effective Date Section(s) 

Adopted April 5, 1984  

Revised September 28, 1990  

Revised January 7, 2011 1-7 

Revised November 18, 2011 1-7 

Amended   

 

 

[END OF RULES] 


